
 

 
MARK D. O’CONNELL, PRESIDENT &  CEO 

22 East Mifflin strEEt, suitE 900
Madison, Wi 53703

toll frEE: 1.866.404.2700
PhonE: 608.663.7188

fax: 608.663.7189
WicountiEs.org

 
 

EAST CENTRAL ITBEC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Friday, October 28, 2022 
Noon 

 
Fond du Lac CVB 

Boardroom 
23 S. Main Street 

Fond du Lac, Wisconsin 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Approval of Minutes of August 26, 2022 Meeting 
 

4. Election of Officers 
 

5. Financial Report 
 

6. Discussion with Regard to Development of the 2023 East Central ITBEC Budget 
 

7. Creation of a Marketing Plan for 2023 
 

a. Insertion in Travel Wisconsin’s 2023 Official Travel Guide 
b. 2023 Travel Wisconsin Co-op Program  
c. Other Marketing Opportunities 

 
8. Endless Shores of Wisconsin Website 

 
a. Website Analytics 
b. Website Maintenance 

 
9. Consideration of Early Payment of Third Installment to Discover Mediaworks, Inc. for 

the Production of Discover Wisconsin Television Series Episode Featuring East Central 
ITBEC 



  

 

East Central ITBEC Board of Directors 
Page 2 
October 28, 2022 

 

 
10. Bylaws Review 

 
11. Set Meeting Schedule for Remainder of 2022 and 2023 

 
12. Adjourn 

 



 

 
MARK D. O’CONNELL, PRESIDENT &  CEO 

22 East Mifflin strEEt, suitE 900
Madison, Wi 53703

toll frEE: 1.866.404.2700
PhonE: 608.663.7188

fax: 608.663.7189
WicountiEs.org

 
EAST CENTRAL ITBEC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
August 26, 2022 

 
Oshkosh Corporation Global Headquarters 

Oshkosh, Wisconsin 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Paul Sundquist called the meeting to order at 10:10 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: PRESENT: Scott Rodman, Fond du Lac County; Paul Sundquist, Winnebago 
County; Mary Kohrell, Calumet County; Joel Clark, Calumet County; and Lisa Pauly Lefeber, 
Fond du Lac Area CVB. ABSENT: Doug Nelson, Winnebago County. OTHERS PRESENT: 
Amy Albright, Visit Oshkosh and Ethan Hollenberger, Winnebago County. WCA STAFF: 
Sarah Diedrick-Kasdorf. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Motion by Kohrell, second by Clark, to approve the minutes of 
the April 6, 2022 meeting. Motion carried. 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS: By unanimous consent the members agreed to hold this item 
over to the next meeting. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORT: Sarah Diedrick-Kasdorf reviewed with board members revenues and 
expenditures as of August 17, 2022. 
 
BUDGET AND ASSESSMENTS FOR 2023: East Central ITBEC board members discussed 
member assessments for 2023. Motion by Pauly Lefeber, second by Clark, to assess member 
dues at 2022 levels: Calumet County - $2,600; Winnebago County - $11,000; Fond du Lac 
County - $6,500. Motion carried. 
 
DISCUSSION ON THE CREATION OF A MARKETING PLAN FOR 2023: As many of 
the board members are new, Chair Sundquist explained the history of the East Central ITBEC. 
Discussion on the marketing plan was held over to the next meeting. 
 
BYLAWS REVIEW: A discussion was held regarding the bylaws of the East Central ITBEC. 
Further discussion on the bylaws will be held at future meetings. 
 
 



  

 

East Central ITBEC Board Minutes 
Page 2 
August 26, 2022 

 

 
WCA ANNUAL CONFERENCE: Sarah Diedrick-Kasdorf indicated that the East Central 
ITBEC will be hosting a booth with the North Central and Northwest ITBECs at the WCA 
Annual Conference in September. If the ITBEC has any materials to distribute at the booth 
please contact Sarah. 
 
SET NEXT MEETING DATE: The next meeting was set for the last half of October. 
 
ADJOURN: Chair Sundquist adjourned the meeting at 12:18 p.m.  

 
 

 
 



2022 ESTO Mercy Award for 
Printed Collateral Materials

2023 OFFICIAL  
TRAVEL GUIDE PRINT

FOR MATERIALS SPECIFICATIONS, PLEASE CONTACT:  
Kristin Fletcher, Campaign Manager

kfletcher@maddenmedia.com

FOR ADVERTISING INFORMATION,  
PLEASE CONTACT:

DAN CARTER 
DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT SPECIALIST 
602-432-7119  
dcarter@maddenmedia.com

JAKE SILLAVAN 
DIRECTOR OF DESTINATION STRATEGY
281-352-5607 
jsillavan@maddenmedia.com

7/22/22

WISCONSIN
TravelWisconsin.com

FAMILY FUN

ICONIC CITIES

EVENT PLAYLIST

SURPRISING 
BEACHES6 

Inspire Travelers to Visit

WISCONSIN
Travel Wisconsin’s Official Travel Guide

delivers the best of Wisconsin to visitors.

They depend on the guide as their source

for selecting where to go, where to stay,

and what to do while visiting Wisconsin.

The guide is the official fulfillment piece

for next year—showcase your destination or

attraction to interested travelers in 2023.

AD RATES*
STANDARD POSITION RATE

Full Page $ 5,405

1/2 Page $ 2,770

1/4 Page $ 1,865

PREMIUM POSITION** RATE

Inside Front Cover** $ 6,485

Facing Inside Front Cover** $ 6,215

Inside Back Cover** $ 6,215

Table of Contents (Left) $ 6,005

Table of Contents (Right) $ 6,005

Facing Welcome Full Page** $ 6,005

Facing Masthead Full Page** $ 6,005

Masthead (1/2 Page) $ 4,144
Pre-billing available. Details subject to change.  

Travel Wisconsin has final decision on ad placements.  

All rates are net.  

Previous and new advertisers have first right of refusal.

**Premium Postion for advertiorial ad will include a QR Code.

MATERIALS DUE 
NOVEMBER 4, 2022

AD CLOSE
OCTOBER 28, 20221

PUBLICATION/BILLING 
MARCH 2023

IMPORTANT DATES

ENGAGE READERS WITH 
SPONSORED CONTENT ADS
New for 2023, all ads in the Wisconsin Travel 
Guide will be in a “Sponsored Content” 
format. Available in full-page, half-page 
and quarter-page sizes, Sponsored Content 
Ads combine your imagery with inspirational 
copy about your destination, attraction, 
or lodgings. You provide images and copy, 
and our team will edit and lay out the ad to 
ensure it looks fantastic. Sponsored Content 
Ads look like editorial, so readers are more 
likely to interact with your ad.

1/2

1/4

8.125 

10.75

1/4



Produced in partnership between  
Travel Wisconsin and Madden

2023 OFFICIAL  
TRAVEL GUIDE DIGITAL

FOR MATERIALS SPECIFICATIONS, PLEASE CONTACT:  
Kristin Fletcher, Campaign Manager

kfletcher@maddenmedia.com

FOR ADVERTISING INFORMATION,  
PLEASE CONTACT:

DAN CARTER 
DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT SPECIALIST 
602-432-7119
dcarter@maddenmedia.com

JAKE SILLAVAN 
DIRECTOR OF DESTINATION STRATEGY
281-352-5607 
jsillavan@maddenmedia.com

7/22/22

We know audiences consume media across different channels, 
and with these added value opportunities included with Wisconsin 
Travel Guide Sponsored Content ads, we can help you maximize 
the reach of your destination’s message. Check out these no-cost 
additions to each Sponsored Content ad purchase: 

2023 OFFICIAL TRAVEL GUIDE  
DIGITAL ADDED VALUE

Inspire Travelers to Visit

WISCONSIN

PREMIUM POSITION FULL PAGE
HALF PAGE //   
QUARTER PAGE

FACEBOOK CANVAS AD INSTAGRAM STORY INSTAGRAM STORY

Up to four images  
included in ad

Single Image Story:
one image per day for a week 
(Mon-Fri)

Single Image Story:  
one image per day for a week 
(Mon-Fri)

Estimated Impressions: 
15,000

Estimated Impressions: 
5,000 per story

Estimated Impressions:  
5,000 per story

EMAIL PROMO AD FACEBOOK CANVAS AD

Inclusion in Wisconsin Traveler 
email

Up to four images 
included in ad

Subscriber list of over  
88,000

Estimated Impressions:  
15,000



Produced in partnership between  
Travel Wisconsin and Madden

2023 OFFICIAL  
TRAVEL GUIDE

FOR MATERIALS SPECIFICATIONS, PLEASE CONTACT:  
Kristin Fletcher, Campaign Manager

kfletcher@maddenmedia.com

FOR ADVERTISING INFORMATION,  
PLEASE CONTACT:

DAN CARTER 
DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT SPECIALIST 
602-432-7119
dcarter@maddenmedia.com

JAKE SILLAVAN 
DIRECTOR OF DESTINATION STRATEGY
281-352-5607 
jsillavan@maddenmedia.com

7/22/22

WISCONSIN
TravelWisconsin.com

FAMILY FUN

ICONIC CITIES

EVENT PLAYLIST

SURPRISING 
BEACHES6 

EXCLUSIVE 
OPPORTUNITY: 
SPONSORED SIDEBAR
Become a part of the story with a 
Sponsored Sidebar. As a DMO partner 
of Travel Wisconsin, you can tell your 
destination’s story within the feature 
editorial of the 2023 Wisconsin Travel 
Guide. You provide content and a QR code 
pointing to your website, and our creative 
team will design it as part of a feature 
spread within the guide. Sponsored 
Sidebar spaces are extremely limited, so 
reserve your spot today!

AD RATES*
STANDARD POSITION RATE

1/3 Page Editorial Sidebar 
150 words

$ 2,500

*All Sponsored Sidebar Content will be subject to review  
and approval by Travel Wisconsin.

8.125 

10.75
1/3

EDITORIAL SIDEBARS

FACEBOOK CANVAS AD

Up to four images included in ad

Estimated Impressions: 
15,000

WEBSITE PRE-FOOTER AD

Ad will run for 1 month

Estimated Impressions:  
20,000

DIGITAL ADDED VALUE



























































AMENDED BYLAWS 
 

FOR THE 
EAST CENTRAL 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE, BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
 

AN ENTITY CREATED BY 
 

WISCONSIN COUNTIES ASSOCIATION 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
 
Name, Address, Offices: The International Trade, Business and Economic Development Council 
[East Central], herein after referred to as “EC-ITBEC”, is an entity organized by the Wisconsin 
Counties Association. EC-ITBEC shall maintain a principal office with the WCA at 22 East 
Mifflin Street, Suite 900, City of Madison, County of Dane, State of Wisconsin. 
 

ARTICLE II 
 
Section 1. Purpose. 
 
The purpose of the EC-ITBEC is to provide the participating counties within the region a 
mechanism to identify and formulate regional goals and strategies leading to improvements in 
tourism, economic development and exporting. 
 
Section 2. Authority and Powers. 
 
EC-ITBEC is organized by the Wisconsin Counties Association to: 
 
• Identify the economic development needs for its region. 
 
• Develop regional public/private partnerships to expand economic development and 

employment. 
 
• Offer export/trade counseling and seminar opportunities for local businesses. 
 
• Co-sponsor business, marketing and exporting seminars. 
 
• Develop communications and networks with federal, state, local, tribal and other public/private 

agencies and organizations. 
 
• Create work groups which focus on the economic development needs for the region with 

emphasis on exporting, tourism and other aspects of economic development. 
 
• Facilitate political support for regional projects and legislation. 



 
• Adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of meetings and management of the affairs of the 

EC-ITBEC as may be deemed proper, and which are consistent with the laws of the State of 
Wisconsin, the rules and regulations of the Wisconsin Counties Association, or these Bylaws. 

 
ARTICLE III 

 
Section 1. Members. 
 
The following Wisconsin counties are eligible to become participating counties in the EC ITBEC: 
Brown, Calumet, Door, Fond du Lac, Kewaunee, Manitowoc, Outagamie, Ozaukee, Sheboygan, 
Washington, and Winnebago or other counties within the East Central geographic region.  In order 
to be a participating county, the county shall: 
 

a) be member in good standing of WCA; and 
b) adopt a resolution ratifying participation in EC-ITBEC; and 
c) be current in payment of assessments as established by the EC-ITBEC. 

 
The EC-ITBEC shall have three types of members: 
 

1. Voting Members who will be elected county officials, either County Supervisor or County 
Executives, 

2. Member(s) at Large who may be either county officials or persons who shall have 
demonstrated experience and interest in making economic improvements in the region 
constituting the EC ITBEC. This member is also a voting member for their county. 

3. Citizen Members: The Board of Directors may grant a Citizen Membership under two 
conditions 1) The citizen is nominated by a current member of the EC ITBEC Board and 
2) The citizen member nomination is approved by a majority of the EC ITBEC Board 
voting members. Citizen members have all the rights and privileges of a Board Member on 
the EC ITBEC except they may not vote on financial matters. 

 
Membership from categories (1) and (2) must always constitute a majority of the Board. 
 
Section 2. Voting Members. 
 
The County Board Chair in each participating county shall serve as the Voting Member 
representing his/her county unless the County Board Chair has submitted to the WCA the name of 
another elected official (county supervisor or county executive) to serve as the Voting Member 
representing the participating county.  In the event of the absence of the voting member at a 
meeting, the county board chair may designate an official designee to replace the Voting Member 
for that meeting.  Such designee shall be elected official and shall be designated by written notice 
to the Chairperson of the Board of the EC-ITBEC. 
 
 
 
 



Section 3. Member(s) at Large. 
 
Nominees as Members at Large shall have demonstrated experience and interest in making 
economic improvements for the regional area as it may be constituted at the time of nomination.  
Members at Large shall be approved of by EC-ITBEC.  
 
Section 4. Eligible Counties. 
 
Eligible counties which have not chosen to become participating counties shall be notified of all 
meetings and activities of the EC-ITBEC and shall be permitted to attend all meetings of the EC-
ITBEC but will have no voting members or at large members. 
 
Section 5. Withdrawal in Good Standing. 
 
An EC-ITBEC participating county shall at all times maintain its membership in good standing 
with the WCA to be a member of the EC-ITBEC.  Thereafter, a participating county may withdraw 
from the EC-ITBEC only upon six months advance, written notice, except that any such notice 
shall be issued no later than June 10th of any year.  Any withdrawals to the contrary of these 
provisions shall be construed as a withdrawal not in good standing. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
Section 1. Board. 
 
The EC-ITBEC Board shall be recommended by the County Board Chairs.  
 
Section 2. Terms. 
 
Appointments for all members shall be for two years and expire on the third Tuesday in April of 
even numbered years. 
 
Members shall continue to serve until their successor(s) has been properly seated in accordance 
with the provisions of these Bylaws. 
 
If a county-elected member no longer holds an elected position, that seat is considered vacant and 
shall be filled pursuant to Section V (vacancies). 
 
Section 3. Removal. 
 
An individual member of EC-ITBEC may be removed from his/her seat by a two-thirds vote of 
the EC-ITBEC Board for missing two consecutive meetings without being excused. 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 4. Vacancies and Succession. 
 
Vacancies on the Board, occurring during the year, shall be filled for the unexpired term by a 
majority vote of the remaining members and the person or persons so recommended and confirmed 
shall take their place as EC-ITBEC voting members at the next meeting of the Board. 
 
Section 5. Quorum. 
 
An act of the EC-ITBEC Board at which a majority of the voting members are present shall be an 
act of the EC-ITBEC Board.  
 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

Section 1. Officers. 
 
The Officers of the EC-ITBEC Board shall be the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary.  
Each such officer shall serve for the term of two years, or until the next bi-annual election where 
the members shall choose one of their Elected County Officials by a majority vote through ballot 
to be Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary. 
 
Section 2. Chairperson. 
 
The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the EC-ITBEC Board.  The Chairperson may sign 
any and all instruments for the EC-ITBEC. At each meeting, the Chairperson shall present 
recommendations and information concerning the business, affairs and policies of the EC-ITBEC. 
 
Section 3. Vice-Chairperson. 
 
The Vice-Chairperson shall perform the duties of the Chairperson in the absence or incapacity of 
the Chairperson.  In the case of the resignation, removal, or death of the Chairperson, the Vice-
Chairperson shall perform such duties as are imposed on the Chairperson until such time as a new 
Chairperson is chosen. 
 
Section 4. Secretary. 
 
The Secretary shall take care that minutes of all meetings are kept for the EC-ITBEC Board.  The 
Secretary shall act as Chairperson only in the absence of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson. 
 
Section 5. Officer Removal. 
 
Any Officer may only be removed by a two-thirds vote of the EC-ITBEC Board whenever, in its 
best judgment, the best interest of the EC-ITBEC would be served thereby. 
 
 
 



Section 6. Additional duties. 
 
The Officers of the EC-ITBEC shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be 
required by the EC-ITBEC, Bylaws, Rules or other Acts of the Board. 
 
Section 7. Vacancies. 
 
If the office of the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson or Secretary becomes vacant, the EC-ITBEC 
Board shall elect a successor from its Elected County Official membership at its next meeting.  
Such election shall be for the unexpired term of the vacant office. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

Section 1. Committees. 
 
The Chairperson, with the approval of the EC-ITBEC Board, may appoint committees at any time 
to investigate, plan or perform administrative duties assigned to them.  These committees shall 
report to the Chairperson.  Any committee member may be removed by the Chairperson. 

1. The East Central ITBEC shall have a Tourism Committee that will handle matters related 
to the tourism-based economy in the East Central ITBEC area. Each member County is 
entitled to one representative on the Tourism Committee. Each member county is entitled 
to one vote on matters regardless of the total number of representatives on the Tourism 
Committee.  

a. With the approval of the Tourism Committee Chair, additional individuals deemed 
to have significant interest in tourism promotion and development may be 
appointed to the East Central ITBEC Tourism Committee.   

b. With the approval of the Tourism Committee Chair, individuals that are not on the 
Committee and are invited to EC-ITBEC Tourism Committee meeting(s) may 
request reimbursement of expenses for attending the meeting(s). 

2.  The East Central ITBEC shall have a Business Committee that will handle matters related 
to the retail, manufacturing, and agricultural-based economy in the East Central ITBEC 
area. Each member County is entitled to one representative on the Business Committee. 
Each member county is entitled to one vote on matters regardless of the total number of 
representatives on the Business Committee.  

a. With the approval of the Business Committee Chair, additional individuals deemed 
to have significant interest in business promotion and development may be 
appointed to the East Central ITBEC Business Committee.   

b. With the approval of the Business Committee Chair, individuals that are not on the 
Committee and are invited to EC-ITBEC Business Committee meeting(s) may 
request reimbursement of expenses for attending the meeting(s).   

 
Section 2. Nondelegable Powers. 
 
No committee of the EC-ITBEC shall prescribe the rules governing the conduct of itself or any 
other committee. 
 



Section 3. Executive Committee. 
 
There is hereby created an Executive Committee consisting of the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, 
Secretary and others as designated by the county elected executive committee members.  The 
Executive Committee shall meet from time to time at the request of the Chairperson or ITBEC 
Board, and shall be charged with giving the ITBEC Board ongoing advice on business and policy 
matters, and conducting the routine business of the EC-ITBEC. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

Section 1. Budget and Assessments. 
 
The EC-ITBEC shall, prior to July 15 or there about of each year, establish a budget for the 
operation of the EC-ITBEC assessments for the following year and shall establish annual 
assessments for each participating county.  Each eligible county shall, prior to August 1 or there 
about, be notified of the assessment request.  Assessments shall be paid prior to March 1 of the 
year for which they are assessed. 
 
Section 2. Trademark. 
 
The words “International Trade, Business and Economic Development Council” shall be bound 
by Trademark to the Wisconsin Counties Association and shall not be used by any other group of 
municipalities or any other organization or organizations under penalty of law. 
 
Section 3. Dissolution and/or Liquidation. 
 
The Wisconsin Counties Association Board of Directors shall prescribe the manner and method 
for the dissolution and/or liquidation of the EC-ITBEC. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

 
These Bylaws may only be altered, amended or repealed, and new or restated Bylaws may only be 
adopted by the Voting Members at any regular or special meeting thereof by the affirmative vote 
of a majority of the Voting Members unless a higher number is required by law, provided that a 
statement of the nature of the proposed amendment is included in the notice or waiver of notice of 
such meeting. Any amendment so recommended must be approved by the WCA Board of 
Directors. 
 

 ARTICLE IX 
 

Section 1. Reimbursement Policy 
 
Unless otherwise stated by a carried motion of the board, the reimbursement policy will serve as 
a tool to reimburse members of EC-ITBEC Board and/or EC-ITBEC Committee(s) for expenses 
relating to mileage (car pooling is encouraged) and meals (receipt required).  EC-ITBEC Board 
and/or EC-ITBEC Committee(s) members shall be reimbursed for the costs they have incurred 



relating to mileage at a rate that is consistent with the federal rate at the time of travel.  EC-
ITBEC Board and/or EC-ITBEC Committee(s) members shall be reimbursed for the costs they 
have incurred relating to meals at the state allowable rate.  Any meal reimbursement request that 
exceeds the state allowable rate must be approved by the EC-ITBEC Board in advance. 
 
In order for reimbursement for expenses related to mileage and meals to be paid, written 
verification of the individual’s appointment to the East Central ITBEC Board and/or 
Committee(s) must be on file with the Wisconsin Counties Association.   
 
With the approval of the East Central ITBEC Board Chairperson, individuals that are not on the 
EC-ITBEC Board and are invited to EC-ITBEC Board meeting(s) may request reimbursement of 
expenses for attending the meeting(s).   
 
 

Amended 12-5-06 
 


	East Central ITBEC Board of Directors 10.28.2022
	East Central ITBEC Board of Directors 10.28.2022 Attachment 1 - Minutes
	East Central ITBEC Board of Directors 10.28.2022 Attachment 2 - 2023 Travel Wisconsin Official Travel Guide DC
	East Central ITBEC Board of Directors 10.28.2022 Attachment 3 - Co-op
	East Central ITBEC Board of Directors 10.28.2022 Attachment 4 - Discover Invoice
	East Central ITBEC Board of Directors 10.28.2022 Attachment 5 - BYLAWS

